ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE RESOURCES STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 25, 2012
9:02 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Joe Paskvan, Co-Chair

Senat or Thomas WAgoner, Co-Chair
Senator Bill Welechowski, Vice Chair
Senator Bert Stednan

Senator Lesil MGQiire

Senator Hollis French

Senator Gary Stevens

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT

Senator Cathy G essel

Senat or Joe Thomas

Senat or Denni s Egan

Senat or Linda Menard
Representative Berta Gardner

COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 3001

"An Act relating to adjustnents to oil and gas production tax
val ues based on a percentage of gross value at the point of
production for oil and gas produced from |eases or properties
north of 68 degrees North latitude; relating to nonthly
i nstal |l ment paynents of the oil and gas production tax; relating
to the determnations of oil and gas production tax val ues;
relating to oil and gas production tax credits including
qualified capital credits for exploration, developnent, or
production; making conform ng anendnents; and providing for an
effective date.”

- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

Bl LL: SB3001
SHORT TITLE: O L AND GAS PRODUCTI ON TAX

SENATE RES COW TTEE -1- April 25, 2012



SPONSCR(s) : RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

04/ 18/ 12 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
04/ 18/ 12 (S) RES, FIN

04/ 19/ 12 (S) RES AT 3:30 PM SENATE FI NANCE 532
04/ 19/ 12 (S) Heard & Hel d

04/ 19/ 12 (S) M NUTE( RES)

04/ 20/ 12 (S) RES AT 10: 00 AM SENATE FI NANCE 532
04/ 20/ 12 (S) Heard & Hel d

04/ 20/ 12 (S) M NUTE( RES)

04/ 24/ 12 (S) RES AT 9: 00 AM SENATE FI NANCE 532
04/ 24/ 12 (S) Heard & Hel d

04/ 24/ 12 (S) M NUTE( RES)

04/ 25/ 12 (S) RES AT 9: 00 AM SENATE FI NANCE 532

W TNESS REG STER

ED DUNCAN, CEO and Presi dent

Great Bear Petroleum LLC

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of SB 3001.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

9:02: 55 AM

COCHAIR JOE PASKVAN called the Senate Resources Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 9:02 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators French, Stevens, Stedman, and Co-Chair
Paskvan.

SB 3001-O L AND GAS PRODUCTI ON TAX

CO CHAI R PASKVAN announced the consideration of SB 3001. He
noted that the commttee would hear from Ed Duncan regardi ng the
shal e oil process in Al aska.

ED DUNCAN, CEO and President, Geat Bear Petroleum LLC
testified during the discussion of SB 3001. He said he would
present an operational update on where Geat Bear Petroleum is
at today and take a look at where they mght be next year. He
noted that Great Bear Petroleum was the first nover of shale oi
in Al aska.

9:04: 24 AM

MR. DUNCAN hoped to provide information in order to help the
| egislature meke the best possible decisions regarding oi
issues at this tine.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 2- April 25, 2012



CO CHAI R WAGONER j oi ned the comm ttee.

MR. DUNCAN referred to a nap of regionally vested onshore |ease
hol ders that had been updated foll ow ng the Decenber 2011 | ease
sale. He noted that Royale Energy from San Diego entered the
shal e business in Alaska in Decenber of 2011. The fairway for
oil and gas shale development on Alaska state land s
fundanmentally leased at this tine. He said he believes the
solution for Alaska for production decline is new reserves
within the |egacy producers and within new entry participants,
such as G eat Bear.

He related that a year and a half ago, shale play was just
getting started internationally. Shale play is driven by price
and technol ogy. The shale industry is suprene at technol ogical
i nnovat i on.

He showed a map of Great Bear |eases and spoke of the inportance
of the Janes Dalton H ghway (Haul Road) and the Trans Al aska
Pipeline (TAPS) regarding early testing and proof of conmerci al
viability of shale play.

9:07:27 AM
SENATOR W ELECHOWSEKI j oi ned the conmitt ee.

MR. DUNCAN referred to a map that showed Great Bear acreage and
six well locations that have been permtted to begin drilling in
May of 2012. The locations run north and south along the Haul
Road and allow for year-round easy access. To prove the
viability of an unconventional reservoir, a well that won't flow
to the surface under natural conditions, Geat Bear needs to be

able to drill, fracture stinulate, and conpl ete necessary tests.
9:09:11 AM
He listed the well locations that were ready to go: Al cor 1,

Merak 1, Mzar 1, Megrez 1, Dubhe 1, and Alioth 1. The wells
were named after stars in the constellation Usa Myjor. The plan
of operations is on file, well plans have been designed and
redesi gned, and the technical work programis as good as could
be hoped for. An inportant step was to consummate the well
agreenent with Halliburton.

MR. DUNCAN said it was a very exciting time for Alaska as the
comercial viability of shale oil is about to be tested. Next,
Great Bear will nove toward a pilot production test that wl

| ast about a year.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 3- April 25, 2012



He showed a map that represents a three-dinensional seismc

program that will be inportant for designing the orientation of
|aterals and identifying major fracture networks and faulting
He stressed the inportance of drilling the wells in an efficient

and tinmely manner.

9:13: 00 AM

MR. DUNCAN addressed the plan of devel opnent tineline, which he
said has been nodified slightly fromearly days, partly by Geat
Bear and partly by external forces. The tineline is designed to
get shale play to the point of discussing conmercial viability.
He detailed the three phases of the plan. Phase one is terned
"proof of concept” and consists of data collection and play
tests.

CO- CHAIR PASKVAN requested an explanation of drilling,
especially the term"cored through all three nain shales.”

MR. DUNCAN explained that the North Slope Basin is the nost
prolific oil field in North Arerica. Three world class oil prone
source rocks exist regionally across the North Slope. HRZ (GRZ)
is the shallowest, a |lower cretaceous aged rock unit with very
hi gh organic carbon content. Based on known information, these
rocks are mature for oil across the entire | ease hol d.

CO CHAI R PASKVAN asked him to explain thermal maturity and why
it is inportant.

MR. DUNCAN explained that thermal maturity is related to the
process of natural heating of buried rocks containing organic
carbon, such as plant or animal material that lies within the
depositional system at the time when rocks were originally
deposited. That nmaterial is heated and transforned into oil and
gas in the subsurface. The process of heating is «called
"thermally maturing," generally increasing with depth of burial,
so shallow rocks in the North Al aska Basin are the |east mature.
At the deepest level, the rocks mature past oil generation to
gas generation. The first phase of hydrocarbon generation is
oil; the next phase is gas, and then the rocks are spent. Mich
of the world is full of spent rock.

9:18: 37 AM

CO CHAI R PASKVAN asked how many neters deep the three source
rock layers are.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -4- April 25, 2012



MR. DUNCAN replied that the HRZ source rock will occur at 2,500
nmeters bel ow ground level or 7,500 feet and will be between 400
and 600 feet thick. He noted that HRZ will be selectively cored.

He explained that the second |ayer of source rock is basal
Ki ngak, a Jurassic Age shale. Nearly all of the oil in the
Alpine Field is from basal Kingak, an inportant discovery in
that it initiated Geat Bear's interest in shale oil from basa
Ki ngak.

He related that sitting beneath basal Kingak is source rock
called Shublik, a Triassic Age rock. Shublik is the primry
source rock for the North Slope and occurs in outcrops all
across the Brooks Range. He continued to explain that Shublik

rock is responsible for 60 percent of oil reserves known to
exist on the North Slope. It is a rich organic carbonate black
limestone and is very brittle so it fractures well in outcrop

He noted that Geat Bear has data from about 20 tests of
naturally fractured Shublik in the Prudhoe Bay/Kuparuk field
ar eas.

He summarized that there are three source rocks, co-located and
regionally present, in a section 600 to 800 feet thick. G eat
Bear will initially focus on Shublik, but also will collect data
on other source rocks in order to determne if they can be
produced as wel | .

9:22:21 AM
SENATOR FRENCH asked how thi ck Shublik is.

MR. DUNCAN said Shublik ranges in thickness between 100 feet in
the northeast, to over 250 feet in the southwest of the |ease
hol d.

SENATOR FRENCH pointed out that G eat Bear is waiting to dril
its first oil well, which is exciting. On the other hand, there
could be a downside where oil cannot be produced. He asked what
t he upsi de potential was.

MR. DUNCAN answered that the upside could involve a comrercially
vi abl e devel opnent of all three zones. If they all "frack and
flow," the ultimte volunetric outcone is beyond gane changing
because of the thickness and regional extent of the target zone.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked how G eat Bear's |ease holdings
conpare to Bakken or Eagle Ford or other world class shale

pl ays.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 5- April 25, 2012



MR. DUNCAN replied that Geat Bear is confident that Shublik
rock can be fractured and stinmulated to yield flow He asserted
that Shublik is simlar in quality, thickness, and regional
extent to both Eagle Ford and Bakken.

9:26:31 AM
CO CHAIR PASKVAN requested that M. Duncan share his work
history in Al aska and his involvenent with the shale industry.

MR. DUNCAN related that he started his |arge-conpany career in
1982 in Alaska. He said he had been living in San Francisco
working for a regional exploration office whose primary focus
was the North Slope and Al aska's Quter Continental Shelf (OCS)
He shared his experience with the Mikluk |ease, the Canden Bay
area, and everything east of the Colville River to the Mackenzie
Delta. The focus was on surveying and permtting in the Arctic
National WIldlife Refuge (ANWR) for drilling the Kick Well site.
He said he then worked another year in Alaska as an exploration
supervisor and then as a basin specialist for British Petrol eum
He shared his invol venent in regional source rock eval uation.

9:30: 21 AM

MR. DUNCAN related his work experience wth unconventional
resource development in Oklahoma and California. Sinultaneous
with Eagle Ford and Bakken coming on, he reported that he set
out to find the next big energing resource play in the world. He
said he discovered, and was stunned at, the potential of the
Br ooki an Foredeep in the Brooks Range in 2009.

He continued to say that at the sane tine, the USGS and
Schl unberger and Stanford researchers were working on a three
di mensional fluid-flow nodel -based review of petroleum kitchens
and a charge history of the North Slope fields. It remains a
sem nal piece of work by Ken Peters. He stated that the paper
captured all of the data he could have wi shed for to evaluate
unconventional oil potential in Al aska. The intent of the node

was to explain the charge history of Prudhoe Bay, Kuparuk, and
Al pi ne.

9:34:19 AM
SENATOR FRENCH asked for an explanation of "charge history."

MR. DUNCAN expl ai ned that "charge history" refers to a tine when
hydr ocarbons were generated in thermally nmature areas and then
mgrated vertically or laterally into the reservoirs they are
found in today.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 6- April 25, 2012



CO CHAI R PASKVAN stated that approximately 16 billion barrels
have been punped through the TAPS system He asked if there was
any correlation between the quantities of oil that cones out of
Prudhoe Bay, Kuparuk, and Al pine, and what mght still be in the
source rock

MR. DUNCAN referred to Ken Peters' paper that was published in
2006, which deals with the material balance of hydrocarbons
generated regionally and those captured in known accunul ations
in North Alaska. He said it is fair to say that the residua

hydrocar bons, or retained hydrocarbons in the source rock, are
significant and in excess of hydrocarbons contained in known
tracts. The question is how to recover the retained hydrocarbons
because of the relative newness of technol ogy and unconventi onal

oil. The anmpbunt of oil recovered is inproving every year. A few
years ago the recovery rate in the Eagle Ford was about 3 or 4
percent; now it is over 6 or 7 percent and inproving.

He explained that there is about 100 billion barrels of oil in
conventional traps between Point Thonson and Alpine. That is a
fraction of the oil generated, which is closer to 4 trillion
barrels. He enphasized that he was not suggesting that was the
oil resource base in North Al aska; however, it speaks to the
quality, scale, and thickness of the petroleum source kitchens
in that specific basin.

9:38: 52 AM
CO CHAI R WAGONER asked how many | ateral feet on a shale play can
be fractured.

MR. DUNCAN answered that the data Great Bear is collecting wl
provide information on how best to develop the shale resource
Very thick sections can't be developed laterally. He said he

expects to see very precise, targeted lateral drilling and
pr eci se, wel | -managed calibrated stinmulation programs in
Shubl i k.

9:42:13 AM

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked how it is possible shale play could
have been m ssed by producers already on the North Sl ope.

MR. DUNCAN expl ai ned that these plays are very new - Cctober of
2010 - and the conpanies that discovered the plays were not the
maj or producers. Their context was different from Geat Bear's
and ot her conpanies that |ed the unconventional revol ution.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -7- April 25, 2012



9:44: 34 AM
SENATOR STEVENS asked what Great Bear's relationship with the
majors is, considering that the major conpani es own TAPS.

MR. DUNCAN related that he could answer the question better if
Great Bear was in production. He said he believed G eat Bear has
a good relationship with the mgjors. He pointed out that he was
previously enployed by BP. He expected to produce pipeline
quality oil by the end of the year, but said there is a lot of
work to do first.

9:46: 52 AM

CO CHAI R PASKVAN asked if there is a chemcal fingerprint that
shows the location and history of the source rock on the North
Sl ope.

MR. DUNCAN answered yes. He referred again to the geochemcally
oriented publications by Ken Peters that deals with the "m xing
of the various source oils" in North Slope fields. One article
showed that Al pine was sourced by Kingak, a critical piece of
data. The articles showed the percentage of each source rock in
each area. The oil can be geochem cally traced to the rocks from
whi ch t hey cane.

SENATOR FRENCH asked if Geat Bear's oil will come out south of
punp station one, south of Deadhorse. He also inquired about the
punp station tie-in referred to in phase 2 of Geat Bear's
devel opnment pl an.

MR. DUNCAN explained that the early stage devel opnent planning
is geared toward a trucking operation.

9:52:41 AM

SENATOR FRENCH summarized that the oil would flow back to
surface tanks and be trucked to the North Slope to be put into
production facilities there.

MR. DUNCAN said that was exactly right. There would be a nodul ar
processing system on the pad with the wells, a tank system to
hold produced oil, and a trucking operation to deliver oil to
TAPS.

MR. DUNCAN discussed the inmportance of G eat Bear's position
along the Haul Road. If the results from 2012 are positive, in
2013 the construction of the pilot devel opnent pad wll begin.
It will be a self-contained, nmnulti-wellhead nodul ar processing
system trucking operation located a few hundred yards away from

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 8- April 25, 2012



the existing Haul Road. If the pilot pad provides encouragi ng
results, the Haul Road wll define the first devel opnent
corridor, a chain of production pads that are linked to the Haul
Road.

SENATOR FRENCH referred to an article in Petroleum News, Apri
8, 2012, regarding shale oil developnent. The article points out
how rapidly shale developnents can conme on line. He requested
more information about the advantages of a 2-year play, as
conpared to a 10-year play.

MR. DUNCAN said he did not know where the "first oil in ten
years" comrent cane from He noted it did not apply to Geat
Bear's nodel. He clarified that the expectation is to begin

producing in 2014 with the goal of getting oil to market. In
2015 the plan is to build a devel opnent corridor along the Haul
Road.

SENATOR FRENCH noted that the article says a shale oil well may
initially produce oil at a high rate of about 1,000 barrels per
day, but production tends to decline rapidly, stabilizing at a
nore long-termrate of 100 to 200 barrels per day. In the Bakken
play in North Dakota, total production is currently running at
about 488,000 barrels per day from 6,000 wells, indicating an
average daily well production of just 80 barrels. He asked how
many wells would need to be drilled for conmercialization.

9:55: 23 AM

MR. DUNCAN expected that the well spacing in North Al aska wll
ultimately be around 160 acres per well. This program wll
support 200 wells per year through the course of a very |ong
drill out. If the rocks allow for regional production, under
this nmodel the play will be drilled out at a very high rate for

at least 10 to 15 years. Geat Bear has a goal to reduce the
surface footprint, unlike Bakken

CO CHAI R WAGONER asked if there had been any discussion with the
North Sl ope Borough or indigenous people in the area regarding
the possible density of devel opnent.

MR. DUNCAN said Great Bear has tried very hard to keep the North
Sl ope Borough and the villages up to date on their devel opnent
pl ans.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI inquired if the expected production profile
is about 1,000 barrels per day for the 200 wells.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 9- April 25, 2012



MR. DUNCAN reported that it was a good nunber to use. He noted
that the wells decline at a rapid rate. He expected about 1,000
barrels a day for initial production, followed by an average
production in the first year of 500 to 600 barrels a day, and
ending up with about 250 to 300 barrels a day. The decline rate
slows in years 2 and 3 and beyond. The fact that these wells
decline rapidly portends continuous operations.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked how many barrels would be produced
under full field devel opment in year 5 and year 10.

MR. DUNCAN said it depends on how many wells are drilled and
conpleted. He maintained that 200 wells a year is achievable;
that is 8 devel opnent pads per year and will require a conplete
overhaul of the rig market. He added that there is also a
substantial workforce challenge. Wth 200 wells a year, after
five years there would be 1,000 producing wells.

10: 03: 50 AM
CO CHAIR PASKVAN asked M. Duncan to coment on the geol ogic
ri sks of conventional and unconventional oil.

MR. DUNCAN related that conventional reservoirs wll flow
wi thout stimulation to the surface. Unconventional reservoirs
needs stimulus to flow to the surface and require technology to
become commercial. The challenge now is the use of term nol ogy

when discussing shale oil and unconventional oil. In Al aska,
HRZ, GRZ, basal Kingak, and Shublik are considered technically
unconventional. HRZ, GRZ, and basal Kingak are shale plays.

Shublik is technically not a shale play.

10: 06: 36 AM

VR. DUNCAN continued to explain G eat Bear's plan of
devel opnent. He maintained that by the end of the year the
geological risks wll have been addressed. He |isted sone of
t hose risks, such as the rocks could be too ductile or clay rich
to frack a well .

10: 09: 09 AM

MR. DUNCAN turned to a slide entitled, "North Alaska Shale
Resource Play Realization: Challenges and Business Devel opnent
Qpportunities." He noted the |list of key challenges for
unconventional resource developnment in North Alaska and how
Great Bear neans to address those challenges. He stated that
access to gravel for infrastructure support, water for drinking
and fracking, and silica rich sand or propping, were anong the
| ar gest chal | enges.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -10- April 25, 2012



SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked how Great Bear will assure fracking
won't be a problemin Alaska. He also asked if propane woul d be
used for fracking.

MR. DUNCAN said that Al aska has a nunber of gifts from Mother
Nature. There are no fresh water aquifers that are not frozen as
permafrost on the North Slope. Wter sources potentially
avai |l abl e are subsurface up to a depth of about 5,000 feet, and
there are thick sandstone aquifers that contain brackish water
not fit for human consunption or agricultural use, but are
chem cally very suitable for fracking.

He noted there is very active research related to providing sea
water as an allowable conponent for fracking. The operation of
fracking involves capturing and cleaning the flow back water,
necessitating future recycling techniques. Halliburton is very
active in water recycling research using reverse osnpsis
filtering.

He stated that access to gravel is one challenge Geat Bear w |
need help wth.

He said that propane flaring was not part of Geat Bear's
pl anned operati ons.

CO- CHAI R PASKVAN noted the arrival of Senator MGCuire.

10: 16: 45 AM

MR. DUNCAN pointed out that a big challenge for Geat Bear and
the entire petroleum industry has to do with how all players
will need to cooperate to nmake the best outcone for Alaska. A
huge challenge wll be training, hiring, and retaining a
critical mass of workforce. At 50 wells a year, Geat Bear wll
require a significant rebuild of a skilled workforce. He
referred to slide 8 which showed the large nunber of workers
needed in Pennsylvania, 44,000, and South Texas, 68,000, to
sustain the production in those |ocations.

CO CHAIR PASKVAN asked if the Alaska jobs would last for a
generation or nore.

MR. DUNCAN sai d he believed they woul d.

CO CHAI R PASKVAN i nquired whether jobs in unconventional plays,
such as Great Bear's, are neasurable in tens of thousands.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -11- April 25, 2012



MR. DUNCAN said that was an accurate estimation based on what
has happened in Eagle Ford and in Bakken.

10: 22: 50 AM
CO CHAI R PASKVAN asked if the uptick in production, as depicted
in the chart entitled "H storical G| Production," was from

unconventional plays or conventional plays.

MR. DUNCAN replied that he didn't have the input data for the
slide, but based on know edge, asserted that the uptick was from
unconventional oil that was technologically and price driven,
particularly in North Dakota, Texas, and Al berta where there is
heavy oil .

CO CHAI R PASKVAN sumrarized that the two driving factors for
i ncreased production are technology and oil price.

MR. DUNCAN said those factors were certainly driving Eagle Ford,
Bakkan and ot her unconventional plays.

10: 25: 25 AM
SENATOR FRENCH asked what advantages a partnership wth
Hal i burton provides.

MR. DUNCAN replied that Halliburton is a recognized global
| eader in fracking with a highly trained workforce, and has made
a significant commi t ment to research and devel opnent .
Halliburton is a leader in oil recovery technology and the
commitment to address unforeseen chal |l enges.

SENATOR FRENCH asked if the addition of another conpany, Royale,
conpeting in the North Slope for shale oil devel opnent,
val i dates Great Bear's venture.

MR. DUNCAN replied that he does not I|ook at Royale as a
conpeting conpany because the play is so large that it requires
addi ti onal conpanies. He shared that the lead technical driver
at Royale is a personal friend whom he worked with in the 80's.

CO CHAIR FRENCH asked if he was the engineer that analyzed the
Mukl uk fail ure.

MR. DUNCAN said that Dr. Mhaned Abdel-Rahman is a very good
geol ogi st from Sheffield University in the United Kingdom He
stated he was pleased to see Royale and others in the play.

10: 29: 11 AM

SENATE RES COW TTEE -12- April 25, 2012



CO CHAI R PASKVAN asked what kind of play ConocoPhillips' |ease
in NPRA is.

MR. DUNCAN said he didn't know Conoco's |ease strategy, but
offered that the I|ease acreage lies in between tw known
fairways. He thought it was probably an unconventional pl ay.

SENATOR MCGUI RE asked for advice in ternms of training the
necessary wor kf orce.

MR. DUNCAN answered that Geat Bear's program is not the only
one in North Alaska that nay lead to significant job growth, so
the best thing to do would be to engage with the state in
regards to future great demands on the workforce.

SENATOR MCGUI RE stressed the inportance of training Al askans for
the jobs and of offering the right training prograns.

10: 34: 08 AM

CO CHAI R PASKVAN poi nted out that the presentation docunents are
on BASIS. He noted that DOR presented chart 6 entitled
"Historical Q11 Production" to the House Resources Commttee.
The committee was told the Texas decline curve had been turned
around from conventional oil. He wondered if that was accurate.

MR. DUNCAN asserted that it was not an accurate statenent. He
said he knows that oil production is increasing dramatically on
the Eagle Ford play as well in other plays. The upturn in Texas
is nore substantial than what appears on chart 6 and there are
very few active conventional oil plays in the state.

10: 36: 46 AM
CO- CHAI R PASKVAN asked if "co-located" was an accurate term for
the |l ayering of rock types.

MR. DUNCAN said yes. The Shublik formation is deposited
regionally, the basil Kingak is simlarly distributed, and the
HRZ has |less of a regional distribution, but covers the entirety
of the central coastal plain area.

CO- CHAIR PASKVAN inquired if all rock layers can be accessed in
one wel .

MR. DUNCAN replied that it depends on how the bore hole is

engineered. In the event that all three rock |ayers deserve
commercial devel opnent, the nature of the bore holes can be

SENATE RES COW TTEE -13- April 25, 2012



technically nodified. In testing for comrercial viability, the
rocks dictate how to drill the well.

At ease from10:40 a.m to 10:48 a.m

10:48: 19 AM

MR. DUNCAN discussed the challenge in Alaska of inspiring
additional exploration and nmaintaining current oil production.
He related that the petroleum basin in North Al aska is one of
the greatest basins in North America and in the world. Prudhoe
Bay is the 18th largest oil field ever found on the planet.

He pointed out that the perception remains that Alaska is a
hi gh-cost, high-risk, over-regulated place that has a series of
| ayered fears, some that are real and sone that are not. The
challenge is how to create an operating environment in Al aska
where the return is better than conpeting plays in the Lower 48.
The challenge is shared by the state as well as by the oil
conpani es.

He noted that G eat Bear has the l|argest contiguous |ease hold
position in an unconditional play in North America. He suggested
that everyone is trying to drive the costs of production down.
He encouraged the industry to work with the state on this issue.
He stated that G eat Bear is happy to be working in Al aska and
wi |l soon have real data about the potential of their wells.

10: 57: 52 AM

CO CHAI R WAGONER understood that the workforce was critical, but
didn't know of housing opportunities on the North Slope. He
asked i f anybody has tal ked about building a canp.

MR. DUNCAN replied that Geat Bear is very aware of the
magni tude of the housing challenge. No one has a feeling for how
big this project could become. He said the jobs are year-long
and woul d involve famlies so housing and support is critical.

11: 02: 04 AM

CO CHAI R PASKVAN reported that G eat Bear has recently hired Pat
Glvin, the former Comm ssioner of Revenue. He asked what M.
@Glvin's role will be.

MR. DUNCAN answered that M. Glvin is a valuable resource due
to his understanding of the current fiscal reginme, regulatory
process, and permtting front. Pat's role will be to help with
external and governnent affairs, dealing wth expanding the
operation, and close coordination with regulatory agencies to

SENATE RES COW TTEE -14- April 25, 2012



mnimze delays. He wll be deputy general counsel to the
cor porati on.

11: 04: 33 AM

CO- CHAI R PASKVAN requested nore information about the nove from
"proof of concept into the pilot program"” He wanted to know how
the type of drilling rig needed would be determ ned and how nmany
woul d be needed.

MR. DUNCAN replied he expects that Geat Bear wll design
drilling hardware and punping services specifically for this
play. The nunber of the rigs needed is an unknown. He said he
pictured a fleet of simlar or identical rigs in order to reduce
costs for training, nmaintenance, and depl oynent.

SENATOR FRENCH returned to slide 3 and asked if Al cor would be
the first well.

MR. DUNCAN sai d yes.
SENATOR FRENCH i nquired what day Great Bear intends to spud in

MR. DUNCAN replied it would be as soon as Geat Bear gets the
rig and the site ready. The rig contract starts on May 15.

SENATOR FRENCH suggested there mght be a whole |ot of people
wat chi ng. He wi shed M. Duncan good | uck.

11: 07: 48 AM
SENATOR MCGUI RE asked what the range of cost per well would be
and what type of credit incentive M. Duncan woul d prefer.

MR. DUNCAN expl ained that the best way to answer the "cost per

wel |" question is to think about what the cost per well wll be
during core developnent. Data is being collected in the early
wells which are nore expensive than full field devel opnent
wel | s.

He addressed the question about preferred credit incentives. He
said he would have to consider what the state can do to reduce
devel opnent costs in Alaska in order to conpete with the Lower
48. He suggested the state and industry neet to solve that
problem He proposed neeting with the state after Geat Bear's
cost reduction task force neeting to identify nmajor cost
drivers.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 15- April 25, 2012



CO CHAI R WAGONER asked how many feet of core would be drilled in
each exploration well.

MR. DUNCAN replied that there are plans for rmulti-hundred feet
of core through all of the rock zones.

11:14: 45 AM
CO CHAIR WAGONER asked if other cuttings would be analyzed,
al so.

MR. DUNCAN said yes. Great Bear will finalize sanpling scenarios
with Halliburton tonorrow

CO- CHAlI R PASKVAN asked how the core is handl ed when it comes out
of the earth.

MR. DUNCAN replied that geo-chem cal and rock nechanic experts
will dictate how the core is handl ed, but the nunber one rule is
to not allow contam nation. The core goes into isolation and is
shipped off the North Slope to labs in Houston and ol den,
Col orado within hours of com ng out of the ground.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if Halliburton is providing venture
capital.

MR. DUNCAN explained that the participation agreenment allows
Hal li burton to drill and conplete a certain nunber of wells. A
successful conpletion of their work programwll earn them a 25
percent working interest position in a 125,000 acre subset of a
half mllion acres. Geat Bear wll remain the operator. He
concluded that it was a good way to align one of the world's
| eadi ng technical service conpanies with Great Bear's chall enge.

CO CHAI R PASKVAN opined that Alaska is at a very inportant tine
in its history, but there are many chall enges, also. He said he
remai ns optimstic and hopeful after hearing the presentation.

[ SB 3001 was held in committee.]

11:19: 59 AM

There being no further business to cone before the committee,
Co-Chair Paskvan adjourned the Senate Resources Standing
Conmittee at 11:19 a.m

SENATE RES COW TTEE -16- April 25, 2012



